
  Page 1 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
COLUMBIA BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

Tuesday, April 3, 2018 – 7 pm 
Adella G. Urban Administrative Offices Conference Room 

323 Route 87, Columbia, CT 
 
Members Present: First Selectman, Steven M. Everett; Deputy Selectman, Robert Hellstrom; 
William O’Brien, Selectman; Robert Bogue, Selectman; Lisa Napolitano, Selectman. 
 
Also Present: Town Administrator, Mark Walter, Finance Director, Beverly Ciurylo 
 
CALL TO ORDER: S. Everett called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 
 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: S. Everett MOVED to add to New Business 6.4 – 
Notice of Award for the Village Hill Bridge Masonry Repairs project to the 
Agenda. MOTION CARRIED 5:0. S. Everett MOVED to Approve the April 3, 
2018 Agenda. MOTION CARRIED 5:0. 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
3.1 Approval of BOS Regular Meeting Minutes of March 20, 2018. R. Bogue 

MOVED to Approve the March 20, 2018 Meeting Minutes. MOTION 
CARRIED 5:0. 

 
4. AUDIENCE OF CITIZENS: Ann Dunnack 

 
5. OLD BUSINESS:  
5.1 Discussion of FY 18/19 Budget. M. Walter updated the BOS on the Municipal 

Aid grant award (MRSA) that the Town received totaling $26,763.00. S. Everett 
updated the BOS on the recent FiPAC meeting on 3/28/18 and informed them 
that M. Walter gave a PowerPoint presentation regarding the Master Plan for the 
Recreation Area Improvements (Rec Park). S. Everett added that some of the 
FiPAC members felt that they would like more input from the public. M. Walter 
stated that the public meeting for the Master Plan will be held on April 19, 2018. 
S. Everett explained that ultimately, FiPAC decided to not vote on the BOS 
operating and capital budget and agreed to defer the vote until next week’s 
Special Meeting on April 4, 2018. S. Everett and G. Murphy discussed the 
improvements to the old firehouse with regards to taking the old solar panels off 
the roof and replacing with new solar panels. He added that the company that put 
the panels on the old firehouse are no longer in business and that the Town is 
currently working with the new solar company (Greenskies) that Town has 
contracted for the school and asked them if they could come and take a look at 
the other facilities and see if they can come up with a scenario for energy 
efficiency.  

5.2  
S. Everett added that he and M. Walter recently met with a representative of 
Eversource regarding a formal easement off the existing driveway at Rec. Park. 
This easement if for Eversource to be able to access their lines behind Rec Park 
to perform maintenance. Eversource stated that in the past they have asked the 
Town for an easement to access their lines and a discussion with the 
representative ensued about the possibility of Eversource providing assistance 
with re-building the road/driveway in Rec Park. The representative seemed 



  Page 2 

receptive to this idea and would further investigate it. S. Everett stated that we 
are getting updated numbers for revenue collection and is looking very good. 

6. NEW BUSINESS: 
6.1 Request from Connecticut Cycling Advancement Program (CCAP) for the 

2018 Breakaway Benefit Ride on May 12, 2018. S. Everett MOVED to 
Approve the CCAP Road Race. MOTION CARRIED 5.0. 

6.2 Request for the Twenty Seventh Annual Steeple Chase Bike Tour Fund 
Raiser – Saturday August 18, 2018. S. Everett MOVED to Approve the 
Twenty-Seventh Annual Steeple Chase Bike Tour. MOTION CARRIED 5.0. 

6.3 Policy on Economic Development Committee membership. S. Everett 
MOVED that the Board of Selectman hereby establishes a policy that, in order to 
avoid the potential for conflicts of interest, either perceived or actual, residents 
should not serve concurrently as members for the Planning & Zoning 
Commission and the Economic Development Commission. MOTION CARRIED 
5.0. 

6.4 Notice of Award for the Village Bridge Masonry Repairs project. S. Everett 
stated that the cap on the walls needed replacement and that the project is a 60/40 
split with Lebanon, with Lebanon holding 60% of the cost. We had three bids of 
$57,000, $73,990, and $140,000. We are going to accept the bid of $57,000 from 
Mattern Construction Inc. We have done business with Mattern Construction 
before and have been very happy with their work. S. Everett MOVED to allow 
the First Selectman to enter into agreement with the Town of Lebanon to fix the 
Village Hill Bridge with Columbia and acceptance of the $57,000 bid. MOTION 
CARRIED 5.0. 

7. COLUMBIA LAKE / DAM / BEACH: None.  

8. APPOINTMENTS / RESIGNATIONS: 
8.1 Appointment of Rob Hellstrom to EDC. S. Everett MOVED to Approve the 

Appointment of Rob Hellstrom to the EDC for a period of 4 years. MOTION 
CARRIED 4:0:1 R. Hellstrom abstained. 

9. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR REPORT: M. Walter presented a letter that he 
prepared to support the Windham Regional Transit District regarding the new 
state budget that has not allocated enough money towards the Special 
Transportation Fund (STF). The STF is the way in which all of the public transit 
in CT gets its funding. Because of this, CTDOT has been forced to threaten cuts 
to transportation, but they are not doing it evenly. Currently the cuts are only 
focused on the Transportation Districts (Windham, 9 Town, Southeast Area 
Transit, Middletown, etc.) and no cuts are proposed for the state-run systems 
(Hartford, New Haven, Stamford, Waterbury, etc.). The letter is to request a 
universal 2.8% cut for everyone. 

M. Walter presented the Columbia Lake Gate Schedule of Operation. S. Everett 
asked when Fishing season opens. L. Napolitano replied that Fishing season 
opens the 2nd Saturday of April. S. Everett wants to talk to Bob Powell about 
opening day and how we can plan for the fisherman. M. Walter said he would 
follow up with this. A. Dunnack added that she respectfully suggests that we talk 
to the fishermen as well. 

M. Walter talked about the procedures of how we process billing and how we can 
get the Payment of Bills to the BOS for them to review before the meeting. It was 
determined that B. Ciurylo will email the bills to R. Hellstrom and L. Napolitano 



  Page 3 

on Tuesday morning before the BOS meeting, as well as give all the BOS hard 
copies before the meeting. 

M. Walter presented the CCM Legislative update. In particular he pointed out 
several House Bills (HB). He discussed HB 5143 that is an act lowering the age 
of eligibility for property tax relief for elderly persons. This would lower the age 
from 70 to 65 to be available for property tax relief; HB 5312 is an act 
concerning recommendations by the DMV regarding the vehicle statutes. He 
added right now our Assessors can call the DMV and get information on 
registered vehicles in CT. DMV says it’s not “their job” so they want to repeal 
the law that Assessors can’t call the DMV to get this information; and HB 5370 
is an act concerning change orders in construction contracts. This act would 
require all pending or approved change order or directives to have a minimum 
allowable rate of overhead and profit of 15%. This would include the cost of all 
labor, direct supervision, material and equipment required to perform such extra 
work. M. Walter also stated on the positive side that there is legislation to help 
with crumbling foundations by attaching a $20.00 surcharge to insurance 
companies. 

10. CORRESPONDENCE: 
10.1 Monthly CT State Trooper Police Report. M. Walter also added two articles 

from Willimantic Chronicle regarding the Columbia grand list showing an 
increase and the Director of CCM asked Windham to stay with CCM. 

11. BUDGET:  
11.1 Transfers: R. Bogue MOVED to Approve the following Transfers: 

 
 

AMOUNT/TRANSFER# FROM A/C# 
DESCRIPTION 

TO A/C#, DESCRIPTION 

$72.00 / 10-4112-040 Group Insurance 10-4112-460 / Commercial 
Insurance

$340.00 / 10-4133-300 Supplies 10-4133-110 / Postage 
MOTION CARRIED 5:0 

  



  Page 4 

 
11.2 Refunds: S. Everett MOVED to Approve the following Refunds of 

$15,927.41 to the respective business and homeowners. 
AMOUNT# FROM TO 

$3 ,641.77 Town of Columbia Corelogic Real Estate Tax 
Service on behalf of Kathleen 
& Michael Hamilton 

$4,559.14 Town of Columbia Corelogic Real Estate Tax 
Service on behalf of James & 
Cory Hoover 

$2,763.82 Town of Columbia Corelogic Real Estate Tax 
Service on behalf of Bryan & 
Melinda Tarbell 

$1,773.23 Town of Columbia Corelogic Real Estate Tax 
Service on behalf of Kathryn 
Tuckewycz 

$3,108.93 Town of Columbia Corelogic Real Estate Tax 
Service on behalf of David & 
Lynn White 

$38.36 Town of Columbia Jeffrey & Donna Vose 
$36.33 Town of Columbia Jeffrey & Donna Vose 
$5.83 Town of Columbia Kenefick Construction 
MOTION CARRIED 5.0. 

12. APPROVE PAYMENT OF BILLS: R. Bogue MOVED to Approve 2017-2018 
Emergency, 2017-2018 Regular, SBL Grant Payment 4 of 4, Credit Card, and 
Paychex totaling $130,442.85. MOTION CARRIED 5:0 

S. Everett asked about whether we had any Rec Park Funds that we can set up a 
donation to fund memorial benches. B. Ciurylo said we used to have this set up 
years ago, but do not have that set up presently. S. Everett asked B. Ciurylo to 
look into this and maybe put something into Columbia Views. 

 
13. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: BOS discussion on the Oberlander timeline 

extension. 
 
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  
14.1 Real estate per State Statutes Section 1-200(6)(D); Pending Litigation per 

State Statutes Section 1-200(6)(B); Personnel per State Statues Section 1-
200(6)(A). None 

15. ADJOURNMENT: S. Everett MOVED to end the meeting at 8:12 P.M. 
 
Respectfully Submitted by Jennifer C. LaVoie 
 
 
 
s:\selectman\mark walter\boards & commissions\board agendas & minutes\board of selectman (bos)\bos 2018\bos april 3, 2018\bos 4.3.18 meeting minutes.docx 



  Page 1 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
COLUMBIA BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

Tuesday, March 20, 2018 – 7 pm 
Adella G. Urban Administrative Offices Conference Room 

323 Route 87, Columbia, CT 
  
Members Present: First Selectman, Steven M. Everett; Deputy Selectman, Robert Hellstrom; 
William O’Brien, Selectman; Robert Bogue, Selectman; Lisa Napolitano, Selectman. 
 
Also Present: Town Administrator, Mark Walter  
 
CALL TO ORDER: S. Everett called the meeting to order at 7:22pm 
 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: S. Everett MOVED to Approve Agenda. 
MOTION CARRIED 5:0. 

2.1 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: S. Everett MOVED to approve the BOS 
Regular Meeting Minutes of March 6, 2018. MOTION CARRIED 4:0:1 
with W. O’Brien abstaining. 

 
3. AUDIENCE OF CITIZENS: Vera Englert, Ann Dunnack, Joan Hill 
 
4. OLD BUSINESS: None 

5. NEW BUSINESS: 
5.1 EDC Presentation: Vera Englert, Rte 87, Spokesperson for EDC 

presented the EDC’s Tax Incentive Program for current and new business’ 
After surveying several surrounding towns regarding their tax incentive 
programs, Vera Englert, Tom Currier, and Larry Preston came up with a 
proposal tax incentive program for Columbia. She outlined the several 
programs that included an Outdoor Beautification Program, Existing 
Business/Building Renovation, New Building, and New or Upgrade in 
Business Equipment. Discussion ensued regarding adding agriculture to 
the program. R. Bogue asked if there is any reason that we can’t include 
agriculture to the program, as this is in the research stage at this point. 
Tom Currier, 15 Columbia Landing responded that the EDC’s charge was 
to focus on commercial and manufacturing, but he didn’t see why they 
couldn’t add agriculture. V. Englert concluded the discussion by stating 
that if anyone had questions about the research she did to please reach out 
to her. 

6. COLUMBIA LAKE / DAM / BEACH: None 

7. APPOINTMENTS / RESIGNATIONS: None 

 
8. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR REPORT: 
8.1 Update on projects: M. Walter provided updates on several projects: 

 Beach project: The project is coming along nicely and will be wrapping 
up. It was discussed between S. Everett and the Beach Project Advisory 
Committee about extending the wooden guardrail. The funding for this 



  Page 2 

will come from the funds that were not used in the completed projects for 
the Town siding and annex roof.  

 Salt Shed: Currently analyzing two proposals. 
 Town parking lot: The parking lot will be re-finished once better weather 

is here.  
 Village Hill Bridge: $25,700 budgeted for masonry repairs to the bridge. 

Proposals are due March 29th.  
 Pucker St. Bridge: Wrapping up the STEAP grant. $1,894.00 left in 

budget. We are working with the State of CT for fund acceptance. 
 Latham Hill Bridge: An Engineering Study is needed. 
 Hop River Bridge: A long term plan is needed for this bridge.  
 Flanders Rd. Bridge: The project was over budget due to complications to 

the decking. Waiting for final invoice from Coventry. 
 Hop River Trail Park: This is on hold by the State.  
 Rec Park Master Plan: A presentation will be given to FiPac on 

Wednesday, 21st.   
8.2 FiPAC Budget Summary to Date: M. Walter stated that FiPAC had no 

changes at this time since the last meeting, so there are no updates.  
8.3 Open Space Committee – Ramm Easement Property: M. Walter 

provided the Open Space Committee’s letter regarding their evaluation of 
the Ramm Easement property. The conclusion of the letter proposed that 
the Ramm Easement property on Wells Wood Rd, though it is a desirable 
acquisition, the price was too high, and they would not recommend 
pursuing the purchase. R. Hellstrom stated that besides the economics, the 
abutting property owners who bought the property and thought this would 
be their open space and that converting this to open space, people would 
be walking on the property. A. Dunnack added that the owner of the 
property placed a conservation easement on the property and that the 
Town of Columbia are responsible for monitoring that. She added that the 
neighbors were violating the easement at the invitation of the owner. A. 
Dunnack contacted the owner and he stated that he did not know the 
neighbors were using the property. W. Obrien asked if there is something 
the BOS could do about this situation? T. Currier said that the Zoning 
Enforcement should be notified. A. Dunnack said she notified Zoning 
Enforcement. 

8.4 Make Safe Protocol- Road Blockage and Utility Management. M. 
Walter provided the form to coordinate the blocked roads during the last 
storm. L. Napolitano asked if we can put this on the website so that the 
residents will be kept informed. S. Everett said we could do that. 

8.5 Legislative Update: CRCOG, CCM & Solar Tax Exemption: M. 
Walter provided information from CCM regarding revitalizing CT, despite 
risk to local aid and included CRCOG analysis of the process for house 
and senate bills. Also provided was information on the SB420 – an act 
repealing the commercial solar tax exemption. 

8.6 CIRMA Liability-Auto-Property and Workers’ Compensation 2018-
19 Budget Indications: 3-year guarantee for LAP (liability auto policy) 
reevaluated the 3rd year to 0, saving us a $1,000. 

 



  Page 3 

9. CORRESPONDENCE: 
9.1 Thank you letter to Jim Blair 

10. BUDGET:  
10.1 Transfers: R. Bogue MOVED to approve the following transfers: 

AMOUNT/TRANSFER# FROM A/C# 
DESCRIPTION 

TO A/C#, DESCRIPTION 

$150.00 / 10-4134-710 Professional 
Improvement

10-4134-750 / Conference/Seminar 

MOTION CARRIED 5:0 

10.2 Refunds: S. Everett MOVED to approve the refunds of $9,811.30. 
AMOUNT# FROM  

 
TO 

$2,202.10 Town of Columbia Sean & Christa McManus
$7,053.94 Town of Columbia Leneta Real Estate Tax Service on 

behalf of Peck Keith D. & Galica Peck 
Kelley M.

$60.00 Town of Columbia Cheryl Hanley-Munoz and David M. 
Storer Muoz 

$495.26 Town of Columbia Acar Leasing Ltd. 
MOTION CARRIED 5:0 

11. APPROVE PAYMENT OF BILLS: R. Bogue MOVED to approve 2017/18 
regular, credit card and PayChex totaling $88,039.99. MOTION CARRIED 5:0. 

 
12. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: None  

13. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  
Real estate per State Statutes Section 1-200(6)(D); Pending Litigation per State 
Statutes Section 1-200(6)(B); Personnel per State Statues Section 1-200(6)(A): R. 
Hellstrom MOVED to go into Executive Session. MOTION CARRIED 5.0. The Board 
of Selectman entered into Executive Session at 8:11 with M. Walter present. Executive 
Session ended at 8:59pm. No action taken. 
   
14. ADJOURNMENT: S. Everett MOVED to ADJOURN at 9:00 pm and the 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Respectfully submitted by Jennifer C. LaVoie 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
s:\selectman\mark walter\boards & commissions\board agendas & minutes\board of selectman (bos)\bos 2018\bos march 20, 2018\bos minutes 3.20.18.docx 

 

























Start Date End Date Days Hours
May 19, 2018 May 20, 2018 9:00 AM to 3:00 PM

Start Date End Date Days Hours
May 26, 2018 September 9, 2018 Sun ‐ Sat 10:00 AM to 9:00 PM

Start Date End Date Days Hours
September 15, 2018 October 14, 2018 Sat & Sun 9:00 AM to 3:00 PM

2018 Columbia Lake Gate ‐ Schedule of Operation

Note: The gate will be closed during inclement weather

Spring Schedule

Summer Schedule

Fall Schedule








